# **ASPEN'S BATTERY**





ASPEN'S BATTERY

ASPEN'S BATTERY



ASPEN'S BATTERY

#### Location

HAYDENS BOG ROAD BENDOC, EAST GIPPSLAND SHIRE

### Municipality

EAST GIPPSLAND SHIRE

## Level of significance

Heritage Inventory Site

## Heritage Inventory (HI) Number

H8623-0003

### **Heritage Listing**

Victorian Heritage Inventory

Hermes Number 11096

Property Number

History

Heritage Inventory History of Site: The Aspen battery was first mentioned by name in 1889, when guartz from the Crosus and Welcome Stranger mines was being crushed there. Apparently, though, the battery was nearly derelict. Referred to as 'the Old Dolley, at Aspdens', it was constructed of wood, with 4 stamp heads and 9 ft diameter waterwheel, fed by a half-mile race. Of the Welcome Stranger's crushing, the mining registrar wrote that 'owing to the machine having stood so long idle, and being so much out of repair, the yield was very disappointing, the stone yielding only 2 oz of gold per ton'. Soon after, it was reported that the Welcome Stranger Co. had completed erection of a wooden, 4-head, iron-shod dolly. Probably, the company had decided it could do better with a new version of the dilapidated dolly at their own mine; but perhaps they merely reconditioned Aspen's. The Aspen battery site is potentially an important one for the Bendoc-Bonang area, as the wooden dolly here was one of the latest incarnations of a form of battery commonly employed in this district throughout its quartz-mining history. Most other goldfields had abandoned this form of crushing machinery by the early 1860s, but the practical miners of East Gippsland typically constructed (or recycled) these rough wooden batteries, with iron-shod stampers, to test the stone from their mines before deciding to bring in expensive plant from 'outside'. The main disadvantage of the dolly was that it had no gold-saving devices (or only crude ones) and much gold was lost in the crushing process. Successive mining registrars and visiting experts despaired at the 'primitive' standard of machinery employed on the field. The first battery in East Gippsland was a wooden dolly which served the original Bendoc reefs in 1867. The mining registrar remarked that satisfactory yields were being obtained from stone crushed 'in the rudest manner.' The Rising Sun Co.'s first battery (in 1869) was a hand-made dolly, as was the Union Co.'s machine, installed at the same time. (The Union Co. was soon after forced to stop work, as their dolly was losing so much gold.) The holders of the Albert claim, opposite the Aurora Borealis on the Bonang River, tested their reef with a dolly in 1873. In 1874, the Union Jack Co. erected a wooden dolly on its claim on the Bonang River, but lost so much gold during crushing that they were unable to make their mine pay. At this time, the mining registrar remarked that: 'reefs in this district require at present to be rich and yield well under the present mode of working and state of machine appliances.' The Crœsus Co. (which soon after crushed at Aspen's battery) built its own 'primitive machine, in the shape of a dolly' in 1887, and got 40 oz from 35 tons. Likewise, the Welcome Stranger Co., which had also crushed at Aspen's, erected its own 4-head dolly in 1889. The Eclipse Co., on the Bendoc River, early in 1888, erected a 4-head wooden dolly and crushed 30 tons for a yield of 90 oz. James Stirling, who visited the field soon after, marvelled that the Eclipse battery and water race would not have cost more than £150, and remarked: 'As the machinery is a typical specimen of bush carpentry and construction, I have photographed it, as a relic, in striking contrast with the machinery employed at the Rising Sun mine.' (Does his photograph survive?) In 1898, such 'relics' were still being constructed: a group of prospectors between Mt Bendoc and Bendoc River built a wooden 4-head battery and wheel for testing a reef.

This place/object may be included in the Victorian Heritage Register pursuant to the Heritage Act 2017. Check the Victorian Heritage Database, selecting 'Heritage Victoria' as the place source.

For further details about Heritage Overlay places, contact the relevant local council or go to Planning Schemes Online <a href="http://planningschemes.dpcd.vic.gov.au/">http://planningschemes.dpcd.vic.gov.au/</a>